Illinois resident who had contact with Indiana MERS patient tests positive for MERS coronavirus | Press Release | CDC Online Newsroom | CDC



shortly before the patient was identified as having MERS-CoV infection. As part of the MERS follow-up investigation, the local health department in Illinois contacted the Illinois resident on May 3. The health department first tested this person for active MERS-CoV infection on May 5. Those test results were negative. Public health officials are collecting blood samples from people who were identified as close contacts of the Indiana patient. On May 16, the test result was positive for the Illinois resident, showing that he has antibodies to MERS-CoV.

Reports of the first two confirmed imported cases of MERS in the United States – the first in Indiana on May 2, and the second in Florida on May 11 – have resulted in large-scale multistate investigations and responses aimed at minimizing the risk of spread of the virus. As part of this effort, public health officials are reaching out to healthcare professionals, family members, and others who had close contact with the patients to provide guidance about monitoring their health and recommendations about when to see a healthcare provider for an evaluation. Public health officials also are working with airlines to identify and notify U.S. travelers who may have been exposed to the patient on any of the flights. Efforts are now under way to identify, notify, test, and monitor close contacts of the Illinois resident.

All reported cases of MERS have been linked to countries in and near the Arabian Peninsula. In some instances, the virus has spread from person to person through close contact. However, there is currently no evidence of sustained spread of MERS-CoV in community settings.

At this time, CDC's recommendations to the public, travelers, and healthcare providers have **not changed** on the basis of this new information.

- For the general public: While experts do not yet know exactly how this virus is spread, CDC routinely advises that people help protect themselves from respiratory illnesses by taking everyday preventive actions like washing their hands often; avoiding touching their face with unwashed hands; avoiding contact with people who appear sick; and disinfecting frequently touched surfaces.
- For travelers: CDC currently does not recommend that anyone change their travel plans. If you are traveling to countries in or near the Arabian Peninsula, CDC recommends that you pay attention to your health during and after your trip. The CDC travel notice for MERS-CoV was upgraded to a level 2 alert. The travel notice advises people traveling to the Arabian Peninsula for health care work to follow CDC's recommendations for infection control, and other travelers to the Arabian Peninsula to take general steps to protect their health.
- Healthcare professionals should evaluate patients for MERS-CoV infection who have
 - (A) fever and pneumonia or acute respiratory distress syndrome, and either
 - a history of travel from countries in or near the Arabian Peninsula within 14 days before symptom onset, or
 - have had close contact with a symptomatic traveler who developed fever and acute respiratory illness (not necessarily pneumonia) within 14 days after traveling from countries in or near the Arabian Peninsula, or

Illinois resident who had contact with Indiana MERS patient tests positive for MERS coronavirus | Press Release | CDC Online Newsroom | CDC

are part of a cluster of patients with severe acute respiratory illness of unknown etiology in which MERS-CoV is being evaluated;

• (B) or anyone who has had close contact with a confirmed or probable case of MERS while the person was ill, in consultation with state and local health departments.

Background

Middle East Respiratory Syndrome Coronavirus is a virus that is new to humans and was first reported in Saudi Arabia in 2012. As of May 16, there have been 572 laboratory-confirmed cases of MERS in 15 countries. Most of these people developed severe acute respiratory illness, with fever, cough, and shortness of breath; 173 people died. Officials do not know where the virus came from or exactly how it spreads. There is no available vaccine or specific treatment recommended for the virus.

For more information about MERS-CoV, please visit:

- Middle East Respiratory Syndrome: http://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/mers/index.html
- Frequently Asked MERS Questions and Answers: http://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/mers/faq.html
- Indiana State Department of Health: http://www.state.in.us/isdh/
- Illinois Department of Public Health: http://www.idph.state.il.us/ ☑

###
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES

		1	2	ດ
Email	Print	Updates	Subscribe	Listen

Page last reviewed: May 17, 2014 Page last updated: May 17, 2014 Content source: Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

Home A-Z Index Policies Using this Site Link to Us CDC Mobile Contact CDC

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention 1600 Clifton Rd. Atlanta, GA 30333, USA 800-CDC-INFO (800-232-4636) TTY: (888) 232-6348 - <u>Contact CDC-INFO</u>

